

# **Contents**

## **Results Reviews**

- Titan: Consolidated jewellery sales (ex-bullion) grew 27% YoY to INR117.8bn (HSIE: in-line). Gold jewellery demand witnessed a step-up jump post the Jul-24 customs duty (CD) cut. This gold rush lasted well into mid-September (consol. topline growth stood at 16% YoY at INR 145.3bn; in-line). Margins, however, disappointed. Normalising for the INR2.9bn hit due to customs duty reduction, jewellery EBITM (consolidated) contracted 486bps YoY to 8.3% vs HSIE's 9% (note: normalised standalone jewellery EBITM came at 11.4%). Non-jewellery businesses performed well. While we tone down our FY25 EPS by 9.5%, FY26/27 estimates remain largely unchanged. We maintain our REDUCE rating with a revised DCF-based TP of INR2,950/sh (implying 50x Sep-26 P/E).
- ABB India: ABB reported a weak quarter where revenue/EBITDA/PAT at INR 29.1/5.4/4.4bn missed our estimates by 11/10/9%. The company achieved a muted Q3CY24 order inflow at INR 33.4bn (+11%/-3% YoY/QoQ, slight impact due to delay in large order finalisation, extended monsoons), taking the backlog to INR 100bn. Gross margins came in at 43.4%, supported by better prices and provision reversal. EBITDA margin of 18.6% (+271/-61bps YoY/QoQ, 18.4% est.) was impacted by higher warranty remeasurement. ABB saw some slowdown in ordering and believes that whilst demand is robust, in the near term, there could be some consolidation in awards. Some of the large orders' finalisation got pushed into coming quarters whilst the government capex has seen delays. We have recalibrated our estimates to factor in lower-order intake. We reduce our TP to INR 8,145/sh (rolled over to 75x Dec-26 EPS). Given the limited upside, we maintain ADD.
- Mankind Pharma: EBITDA (+25% YoY) was led by 14% YoY sales growth (India formulation up 10% YoY, consumer healthcare +20%, and exports grew 57% YoY), higher gross margin (+202 bps YoY), and steady costs (staff/ SG&A was up 13/12% YoY). In FY25, Mankind expects (1) double-digit revenue growth, (2) steady India formulation growth (to beat IPM growth) and consumer healthcare (double-digit growth), (3) exports to sustain growth momentum led by growth visibility in the US and RoW market, (4) GM to improve YoY, (5) EBITDA margin at 25-26%, and (6) Bharat Serum (BSV) integration on track - it expects 15% growth in FY25 and FY26 and 15-20% growth FY27 onwards with consistent improvement in the margin. While the BSV acquisition (of ~INR 136.3 bn) will be EBITDA margin accretive, the debtfunded acquisition will dilute the near-term EPS (accretive from FY27). Mankind's (ex-BSV) growth visibility in India (acute recovery and scale-up in chronic segment), exports growth momentum, and margin expansion for each FY25/26/27 stay. Factoring in Q2 and BSV business, we have cut EPS by 7% for FY25/26E (increased debt at ~INR 100 bn) and revised TP to INR 2,900 (40x Q3FY27E vs. 35x Q1FY27E). ADD stays.
- **Dr Reddy's Laboratories:** EBITDA^ grew (13% YoY) as +16% YoY sales growth (-4% QoQ US, +18% YoY in India, PSAI up 20%) was partly offset by lower GM (-43 bps YoY) and higher staff/R&D/SG&A (+9/ 33/ 30% YoY). DRRD expects (1) to sustain growth in the US over the next 1-2 years and gRevlimid to be meaningful product in FY25/26, (2) India to see double-digit growth in FY25, led by new launches (16 new launches in H1), scale-up in key therapies, and in-licensing opportunities; organic growth to sustain at 9-10%

HSIE Research Team hdfcsec-research@hdfcsec.com





in FY25, and (3) R&D at 8.5-9% (vs 8.6% in H1FY25) and higher value products (NCEs, biosimilars, peptides, and specialty) for the global market. The company completed the Northstar (Nicotinell; NRT category) transaction in Sep'24 and operationalised JV (in Aug'23) with Nestle India in Q2FY25. Factoring Q2 performance and Nicotinell business, we have raised EPS by 1/3% for FY25/26E. We have rolled forward TP to INR 1,330 (26x Q3FY27E EPS + INR 20/sh from gRevlimid). REDUCE stays as for DRRD beyond gRevlimid; there is not enough pipeline to sustain growth and margin momentum, which would lead to core earnings (ex-Revlimid) growth concerns.

- Berger Paints: BRGR's revenue remained flat at INR27.7bn (in-line). Volume/value growth for Q2 stood at 3.6%/-0.4%. Decorative business saw single-digit volume growth, impacted by weather conditions and flooding in key markets. The premium segment performed well, while mass-consumption products experienced flat/negative growth. A new team has been established to drive market share growth in urban markets, with management targeting an increase from 10% to 15% over the next three years. GM improved by 58bps to 41.7%. EBITDA margin contracted 147bps to 15.6% (HSIE: 16.7%) due to higher employee costs. We cut our EPS estimates by 1-2% for FY25/26 and retain our REDUCE rating with a DCF-based TP of INR500/sh (implying 41x Sep-26E P/E).
- KEC International: KECI reported a mixed set of numbers in Q2FY25, with the highest-ever order inflow during the quarter and a relatively weak to muted EBITDA margin profile. Its revenue/EBITDA/APAT beat/(miss) stood at 1.5/-3.8/-17.2%. The standalone (~88% revenue) EBITDA margin also remained weak at 5.1%. KECI maintained reverting to 9-10% EBITDA margins by Q4FY25 on the back of legacy projects getting completed. KEC continues to surprise with the Order Inflow (OI) of INR 134.8bn, largely led by T&D, civil and railways segments at 69/9/10%, respectively. The order book (OB) as of Sep'24 stood at INR 341bn (~1.7x FY24 revenue), while L1 stood at INR 84.1bn. Further, KEC plans to transfer its cables business to a subsidiary (KEC Asian Cables Limited) by January 2025 as management remains optimistic about long-term growth (revenue of INR 28-29bn by FY27). KEC expects to realise INR 7-8bn of receivables in FY25, aiding its existing liquidity. KECI expects 15% FY25 revenue growth. Given the slip in the margin, we have tweaked our estimates lower. Given INR 8.7bn fundraising, robust inflows, expected margin expansion and likely higher valuation for the cable business, we increase our P/E valuation from 18x to 20x. Owing to the limited upside on our revised target price of INR 1,017/sh, we maintain an ADD rating on KECI.
- V-MART Retail: V-Mart KPIs mean reverting from the bottom continues to play out, led by (1) paring down of Limeroad losses, (2) profitability improvement led by the closure of non-performing stores, and (3) recovery in footfalls/sales density. Revenue grew 20.3% YoY to INR6.61bn (-in-line). Core V-MART operations rose 27% YoY to INR5.37bn (in-line). Q2 SSSG stood at 15% (vs. -6% in Q2FY24). ASP, overall, was up by 6% (mainly due to a change in product mix). GM/EBITDAM came in at 33.6/5.8% (HSIE: 33.7/4.8%). Inventory days reduced to 111 (vs. 132 in Q2FY24). We've increased FY26/27 EBITDA estimates (3-4%) to account for a better recovery. Our DCF-based TP stands revised at INR3,400/sh (earlier INR3100/sh), implying 26x Sep-26 EV/EBITDA. However, the recovery story seems to have played out at 33x Sep-26 EV/EBITDA. Hence, we downgrade the stock to SELL.

HDFC securities Click. Invest. Grow.

INSTITUTIONAL RESEARCH

Sai Silk (Kalamandir): Sai Silk's (SSKL) revenue grew by 6.3% YoY to INR3.47bn (H1 SSSG stood at -6.5%; however, it has been on an up move. SSSG is expected to be strong in H2, backed by higher wedding dates). Blended revenue per sq. ft. stood at ~INR 20k. Demand recovery is seen in Q2. SSKL added 2 VML format stores in Q2 (area addition: 16k sq. ft). Expansion guidance remains unchanged at ~75k sq. ft in FY25. GM improved 56bps YoY to 42.2% (in-line) courtesy a better product mix. EBITDAM contracted 88bps YoY to 15.9% (HSIE: 16%), primarily due to front-loading of new store expenses. We maintain our estimates for FY25/26 and our BUY rating with a DCF-based TP of INR280/sh (implying 20x Sep-26E P/E).

# Click. Invest. Grow. INSTITUTIONAL RESEARCH

# **Titan**

# Competitive intensity elevated, margins disappoint

Consolidated jewellery sales (ex-bullion) grew 27% YoY to INR117.8bn (HSIE: in-line). Gold jewellery demand witnessed a step-up jump post the Jul-24 customs duty (CD) cut. This gold rush lasted well into mid-September (consol. topline growth stood at 16% YoY at INR 145.3bn; in-line). Margins, however, disappointed. Normalising for the INR2.9bn hit due to customs duty reduction, jewellery EBITM (consolidated) contracted 486bps YoY to 8.3% vs HSIE's 9% (note: normalised standalone jewellery EBITM came at 11.4%). Non-jewellery businesses performed well. While we tone down our FY25 EPS by 9.5%, FY26/27 estimates remain largely unchanged. We maintain our REDUCE rating with a revised DCF-based TP of INR2,950/sh (implying 50x Sep-26 P/E).

- Q2FY25 highlights: Consolidated revenue grew 16% YoY to INR 145.3bn (inline). Consol. jewellery (ex-bullion) sales grew 27% YoY to INR117. 8bn (HSIE: INR116.9bn). Domestic jewellery (ex-bullion; ex-Caratlane) grew 25% in Q2FY25 as the Jul-24 CD cut spurred demand. The gold segment (including gold coins) grew ~30%, while studded sales grew 12% YoY in Q2. The segment witnessed 12/10% buyer/ASP growth (SSSG stood at 15% for Q2). Studded ratio declined to 30% (vs 33% in Q2FY24). Normalising for the INR2.9bn hit due to customs duty reduction, Jewellery EBITM (consolidated) contracted 486bps YoY to 8.3% vs HSIE's 9% (note: normalised standalone jewellery EBITM came at 11.4%). Non-jewellery businesses performed well (Watches/Eyewear/Others grew 19/7/38% YoY respectively). The company Tanishq/Mia/Zoya/Caratlane 11/12/1/11 stores Consolidated APAT declined 23% YoY to INR 7.04bn (HSIE: INR 8.1bn). Note: Normalised for CD-led margin loss; APAT was flat at INR9.2bn
- Outlook: Most of the heavy lifting from here is expected to be volume-led, which, amid heightened competitive intensity, could keep margin levers out of play. While we tone down our FY25 EPS by 9.5%, FY26/27 estimates remain largely unchanged. We maintain our REDUCE rating with a revised DCFbased TP of INR2,950/sh (implying 50x Sep-26 P/E).

**Ouarterly financial summary** 

(Rs mn)	Q2 FY25	Q2 FY24	YoY (%)	Q1 FY25	QoQ (%)	FY23	FY24	FY25E	FY26E	FY27E
Net Revenue	1,45,340	1,25,290	16.0	1,32,660	9.6	4,05,750	5,10,840	5,78,807	6,58,709	7,37,050
EBITDA	12,360	14,110	(12.4)	12,470	(0.9)	44,910	47,810	48,815	67,957	76,777
APAT	7,040	9,160	(23.1)	7,150	(1.5)	32,740	34,960	32,913	48,625	56,571
EPS (Rs)	7.9	10.3	(23.1)	8.0	(1.5)	36.9	39.3	37.0	54.6	63.6
P/E (x)						87.7	82.4	87.5	59.2	50.9
EV/EBITDA (x)						65.8	63.3	62.0	44.6	39.5
Core RoCE(%)						17.5	16.1	14.6	17.9	17.5

Source: Company, HSIE Research, Consolidated Financials

Change in estimates

		FY25E			FY26E			FY27E	
(Rs mn)	New	Old	Change (%)	New	Old	Change (%)	New	Old	Change (%)
Revenue	5,78,807	5,74,627	0.7	6,58,709	6,51,342	1.1	7,37,050	7,31,940	0.7
Gross Profit	1,24,002	1,28,852	(3.8)	1,54,953	1,53,378	1.0	1,73,013	1,71,991	0.6
Gross Profit Margin (%)	21.4	22.4	(100 bps)	23.5	23.5	(2 bps)	23.5	23.5	-
EBITDA	48,815	53,347	(8.5)	67,957	67,792	0.2	76,777	77,278	(0.6)
EBITDA margin (%)	8.4	9.3	(85 bps)	10.3	10.4	(9 bps)	10.4	10.4	-
APAT	32,913	36,349	(9.5)	48,625	48,452	0.4	56,571	56,920	(0.6)
APAT margin (%)	5.7	6.3	(64 bps)	7.4	7.4	(6 bps)	7.4	7.4	-
EPS	37.0	40.8	(9.5)	54.6	54.4	0.4	63.6	64.0	(0.6)
Source: Company, HSIE Research									

# **REDUCE**

CMP (as on 5	INR 3,230	
<b>Target Price</b>	INR 2,950	
NIFTY	24,213	
KEY CHANGES	OLD	NEW
Rating	REDUCE	REDUCE
Price Target	INR 2,875	INR 2,950
EDC 0/	FY25E	FY26E
EPS %	-9.5	+0.4

#### KEY STOCK DATA

Bloomberg code	TTAN IN
No. of Shares (mn)	888
MCap (INR bn) / (\$ mn)	2,868/34,096
6m avg traded value (IN	JR mn) 5,036
52 Week high / low	INR 3,887/3,056
-	·-

#### STOCK PERFORMANCE (%)

	3M	6 <b>M</b>	12M
Absolute (%)	(4.3)	(8.6)	(1.4)
Relative (%)	(5.2)	(16.2)	(24.8)

### **SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (%)**

	Jun-24	Sep-24
Promoters	52.9	52.9
FIs & Local MFs	10.87	9.29
FPIs	18.2	18.22
Public & Others	18.03	19.59
Pledged Shares	-	-
Source : BSE		

Pledged shares as % of total shares

Jay Gandhi jay.gandhi @hdfcsec.com +91-22-6171-7320

# HDFC securities Click. Invest. Grow. YEARS INSTITUTIONAL RESEARCH

# **ABB** India

## **Execution miss**

ABB reported a weak quarter where revenue/EBITDA/PAT at INR 29.1/5.4/4.4bn missed our estimates by 11/10/9%. The company achieved a muted Q3CY24 order inflow at INR 33.4bn (+11%/-3% YoY/QoQ, slight impact due to delay in large order finalisation, extended monsoons), taking the backlog to INR 100bn. Gross margins came in at 43.4%, supported by better prices and provision reversal. EBITDA margin of 18.6% (+271/-61bps YoY/QoQ, 18.4% est.) was impacted by higher warranty remeasurement. ABB saw some slowdown in ordering and believes that whilst demand is robust, in the near term, there could be some consolidation in awards. Some of the large orders' finalisation got pushed into coming quarters whilst the government capex has seen delays. We have recalibrated our estimates to factor in lower-order intake. We reduce our TP to INR 8,145/sh (rolled over to 75x Dec-26 EPS). Given the limited upside, we maintain ADD.

- Q2CY24 financial highlights: Revenue was INR 29.1bn (+5.2%/+2.9% YoY/QoQ, a miss by 11%). EBITDA came in at INR 5.4bn (+23.2%/-0.4% YoY/QoQ, a miss by 10.3%). EBITDA margin was 18.6% (+271/-61bps YoY/QoQ, 18.4% est.), which led to the EBITDA miss. RPAT/APAT was INR 4.4bn (+22%/-1% YoY/QoQ, a miss by 9%).
- Muted order booking, seasonal factor at play: For Q3CY24, order inflow was at INR 33.4bn (+11%/-3% YoY/QoQ), taking the backlog to INR 100bn, consisting of a mix of short and long cycle orders in the ratio of 75:25. RA/MO/EL/PA saw order inflows of INR 0.7/10/17.7/5bn, growing -35/-26/71/-6% YoY. RA saw a strong inflow from automotive and electronics. In MO, growth was led by large orders from transportation. PA orders are driven by the energy industry. EL was driven by growth across data centres, railways and export orders. Elections, delays in decision-making in the Process Industry, extended monsoon, and slow government awarding impacted inflows.
- Near-term slowdown, growth to pick up over medium term: Whilst end market demand seems resilient, delay in decision-making has impacted growth. Some of the other factors, like price erosion in LT motors, seem to be bottoming out. Large orders from data centres have remained intact, whilst core industries' delay in decision-making has led to award postponement. Due to the growing demand for energy-efficient and premium quality products, ABB is well positioned along with its diversified business model, where it focuses on high growth sectors like data centres, EL, rail and metro, renewables, etc.

Standalone financial summary (INR mn)

Standarone	Standarone initialitial summary (II VIX IIII)								
Dec Year End	3QCY24	3QCY23	YoY (%)	2QCY24	QoQ (%)	CY24E	CY25E	CY26E	CY27E
Net Revenues	29,122	27,692	5.2	28,309	2.9	118,432	137,815	161,508	188,177
EBITDA	5,402	4,385	23.2	5,425	(0.4)	22,452	25,130	29,013	33,582
APAT	4,405	3,620	21.7	4,435	(0.7)	18,323	20,146	23,013	26,431
EPS (INR)	20.8	17.1	21.7	20.9	(0.7)	86.5	95.1	108.6	124.7
P/E (x)						82.4	75.0	65.6	57.1
EV/EBITDA (x)						65.1	57.6	49.2	41.9
RoE (%)						26.3	23.1	21.5	20.4

Source: Company, HSIE Research

## **Change in Estimates**

CY24E				CY25E		CY26E			
Particulars	New	Old	% Change	New	Old	% Change	New	Old	% Change
Revenues	118,432	125,012	(5.3)	137,815	150,299	(8.3)	161,508	176,964	(8.7)
EBITDA	22,452	22,680	(1.0)	25,130	26,932	(6.7)	29,013	31,773	(8.7)
EBITDA margin (%)	19.0	18.1	81.5	18.2	17.9	31.6	18.0	18.0	0.9
APAT	18,323	18,294	0.2	20,146	21,544	(6.5)	23,013	25,053	(8.1)

Source: Company, HSIE Research

## ADD

CMP (as on 5	!) IN	INR 7,133		
<b>Target Price</b>		IN	R 8,145	
NIFTY			24,213	
KEY CHANGES	OLI	)	NEW	
Rating	ADI	)	ADD	
Price Target	INR 8,55	7 IN	JR 8,145	
EPS change	CY24E	CY25E	CY26E	
%	0.2	(6.5)	(8.1)	

#### KEY STOCK DATA

Bloomberg code	ABB IN
No. of Shares (mn)	212
MCap (INR bn) / (\$ mn)	1,512/17,971
6m avg traded value (INI	R mn) 3,189
52 Week high / low	INR 9,200/4,141

#### STOCK PERFORMANCE (%)

	3M	6M	12M
Absolute (%)	(4.5)	6.5	71.2
Relative (%)	(5.4)	(1.1)	47.7

#### SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (%)

	Jun-24	Sep-24
Promoters	75.00	75.00
FIs & Local MFs	5.64	5.42
FPIs	12.06	12.28
Public & Others	7.29	7.29
Pledged Shares	-	-
Source : BSE		

### Parikshit D Kandpal, CFA

parikshitd.kandpal@hdfcsec.com +91-22-6171-7317

#### Aditya Sahu

aditya.sahu@hdfcsec.com +91-22-6171-7338

## Jay Shah

jay.shah1@hdfcsec.com +91-22-6171-7353

# **Mankind Pharma**

# Strong Q2: steady India growth; BSV integration key

EBITDA (+25% YoY) was led by 14% YoY sales growth (India formulation up 10% YoY, consumer healthcare +20%, and exports grew 57% YoY), higher gross margin (+202 bps YoY), and steady costs (staff/ SG&A was up 13/12% YoY). In FY25, Mankind expects (1) double-digit revenue growth, (2) steady India formulation growth (to beat IPM growth) and consumer healthcare (doubledigit growth), (3) exports to sustain growth momentum led by growth visibility in the US and RoW market, (4) GM to improve YoY, (5) EBITDA margin at 25-26%, and (6) Bharat Serum (BSV) integration on track - it expects 15% growth in FY25 and FY26 and 15-20% growth FY27 onwards with consistent improvement in the margin. While the BSV acquisition (of ~INR 136.3 bn) will be EBITDA margin accretive, the debt-funded acquisition will dilute the nearterm EPS (accretive from FY27). Mankind's (ex-BSV) growth visibility in India (acute recovery and scale-up in chronic segment), exports growth momentum, and margin expansion for each FY25/26/27 stay. Factoring in Q2 and BSV business, we have cut EPS by 7% for FY25/26E (increased debt at ~INR 100 bn) and revised TP to INR 2,900 (40x Q3FY27E vs. 35x Q1FY27E). ADD stays.

- Q2 highlight—India growth was steady: Sales were at ~INR 30.7 bn (+14% YoY) as India formulations (83%) were up 10% YoY at INR 25.6 bn, led by strong growth in chronic (+12% YoY) and volume growth (1.3% YoY vs 0.4% for IPM), which was offset by regulatory headwinds in certain key products in the acute segment; consumer healthcare (8%) was +20% YoY at INR 2.3 bn (+13% QoQ) and exports (9%) grew 57% YoY on traction in recent launches.
- EBITDA growth on cost controls: GM was up 202 bps YoY at 71.6%. Steady costs staff (+13% YoY) and SG&A (+12%; M&A related/non-recuring costs) led to EBITDA of INR 8.5 bn (+25% YoY) and the margin was at 27.6% (+242 bps YoY). Higher other income (+82% YoY), depreciation (+9%), and interest cost (-18%) led to a reported PAT of INR 6.5 bn (+30% YoY).
- **Key takeaways from the con call:** It expects to maintain growth momentum in the India business on the back of scale-up in specialty and super specialty business and increasing market coverage. Dydrogesterone growth was strong at 20+% in Q2. Panacea is growing at ~25% with a 30%+ EBITDA margin. In Q2FY25, the company had a regulatory impact (inclusion in NLEM) on two key products: Codistar (respiratory; it expects to normalise from Q3) and Unwanted 72 (gynaec; it expects to sustain volume share). Tier 1/ metro was at 9.8% (vs 8.8% IPM; 1.1-1.2x vs IPM in H1) and Tier 2-6 was at 7.2% (vs 6.9% IPM; 1.1x vs IPM in H1). **BSV acquisition**: The company achieved transaction closure in Oct'24. It targets to liquidate the entire INR 100 bn debt over the next 3 years through a combination of equity infusion (possible QIP up to INR 30 bn), divestment of non-core assets (hospitality), and internal accruals. It retains a net debt/EBITDA target of <2x in FY26. BSV's gross/EBITDA margin was slightly higher than Mankind's. BSV NLEM exposure is ~40%.

Quarterly financial summary

(INR mn)	2QFY25	2QFY24	YoY (%)	1QFY25	QoQ (%)	FY23	FY24	FY25E	FY26E	FY27E
Net Revenue	30,765	27,081	14	28,934	6	87,494	1,03,348	1,26,632	1,56,976	1,77,750
EBITDA	8,500	6,826	25	6,818	25	19,006	25,351	32,418	42,384	49,415
APAT	6,535	5,010	30	5,365	22	13,720	19,129	20,248	23,842	30,778
EPS (INR)	16.3	12.5	30	13.4	22	34.2	47.8	50.5	59.5	76.8
P/E (x)						79.2	56.8	53.7	45.6	35.3
EV/EBITDA (x)						56.6	41.7	36.3	27.3	22.9
RoCE (%)						22	27	19	17	20

Source: Company, HSIE Research

# **ADD**

CMP (as on 5	INR 2,714	
<b>Target Price</b>	INR 2,900	
NIFTY		24,213
KEY CHANGES	OLD	NEW
Rating	ADD	ADD
Price Target	INR 2320	INR 2900
EDC 0/	FY25E	FY26E
EPS %	(7.4)	(6.9)
	•	•

#### **KEY STOCK DATA**

Bloomberg code	MANKIND IN
No. of Shares (mn)	401
MCap (INR bn) / (\$ mn)	1,087/12,929
6m avg traded value (IN	R mn) 1,663
52 Week high / low	INR 2,839/1,733

#### STOCK PERFORMANCE (%)

	3 <b>M</b>	6 <b>M</b>	12M
Absolute (%)	36.4	17.3	52.9
Relative (%)	35.5	9.7	29.4

#### **SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (%)**

	Jun-24	Sep-24
Promoters	74.87	74.87
FIs & Local MFs	9.95	9.9
FPIs	11.58	12.37
Public & Others	3.6	2.86
Pledged Shares	-	-
Source: BSE		

**Mehul Sheth** mehul.sheth@hdfcsec.com +91-22-6171-7349



# Dr Reddy's Laboratories

# Steady Q2; focus on high-value portfolio development

EBITDA^ grew (13% YoY) as +16% YoY sales growth (-4% QoQ US, +18% YoY in India, PSAI up 20%) was partly offset by lower GM (-43 bps YoY) and higher staff/R&D/SG&A (+9/33/30% YoY). DRRD expects (1) to sustain growth in the US over the next 1-2 years and gRevlimid to be meaningful product in FY25/26, (2) India to see double-digit growth in FY25, led by new launches (16 new launches in H1), scale-up in key therapies, and in-licensing opportunities; organic growth to sustain at 9-10% in FY25, and (3) R&D at 8.5-9% (vs 8.6% in H1FY25) and higher value products (NCEs, biosimilars, peptides, and specialty) for the global market. The company completed the Northstar (Nicotinell; NRT category) transaction in Sep'24 and operationalised JV (in Aug'23) with Nestle India in Q2FY25. Factoring Q2 performance and Nicotinell business, we have raised EPS by 1/3% for FY25/26E. We have rolled forward TP to INR 1,330 (26x Q3FY27E EPS + INR 20/sh from gRevlimid). REDUCE stays as for DRRD beyond gRevlimid; there is not enough pipeline to sustain growth and margin momentum, which would lead to core earnings (ex-Revlimid) growth concerns.

- Q2 highlight—strong sales growth: Sales grew 16% YoY to INR 80.4 bn as US sales (47% of sales) declined 4% QoQ to USD 445 mn (+17% YoY), YoY growth led by an increase in volumes (launched 4 products in Q2). India (17%) grew 18% YoY to INR 13.9 bn (ex-Vaccine growth was at ~9%), EM (18%) grew 19% YoY as 31% YoY growth in RoW and 19% in Russia was offset by 5% decline in CIS. EU (7%) grew 9% and PSAI (10%) grew 20% YoY.
- Elevated costs impacted EBITDA: GM was at 70.6% (-43 bps YoY) due to a change in business mix. Higher staff/R&D/SG&A cost (+9%/33%/30% YoY) led to EBITDA of INR 21.6 bn (+8% YoY) and a margin of 27.0% (-219 bps YoY). Adjusted EBITDA (for ~INR 1.01 bn related to M&As) was at INR 22.7 bn (+13% YoY) and the margin at 28.2% (-93 bps YoY). Muted other income (-2% YoY), interest cost (+6%) and depreciation (+6%), led to PAT of INR 12.55 bn (-15% YoY). Adjusted for one-offs, PAT grew 3% YoY at INR 13.28 bn.
- **Key takeaways from con call:** DRRD expects to sustain growth in the US business led by new launch visibility. **Update on biosimilars:** Expects filing for Denosumab (partnered with Alvotech) in FY26 and Aflibercept in FY27; Abatacept (partnered with Coya) is under Phase III, and it expects approval/launch in CY26 end/CY27; secured approval in EU for rituximab biosimilar in Q2. **GLP-1:** The company sees it as an important segment for peptide supply opportunity in its API segment; it has identified ~15 GLP products for development; Semaglutide will have day 1 launch on patent expiry or early in all the market; it has in-house capability for both formulation and API. **R&D allocation:** ~36% going towards biologics/Aurigene, balance towards generics within which, 60% on the US generics and 40% for APIs. It expects SG&A at 27.5-28% of sales and ETR at 25% in FY25.

## Quarterly financial summary

(INR mn)	2Q FY25	2Q FY24	YoY (%)	1Q FY25	QoQ (%)	FY23	FY24	FY25E	FY26E	FY27E
Net Revenue	80,382	69,026	16	76,961	4	2,46,697	2,80,111	3,26,176	3,47,716	3,37,817
EBITDA	21,689	20,138	8	21,304	2	64,189	79,334	90,024	94,926	80,401
APAT	13,281	12,868	3	13,329	(0)	35,229	51,110	55,343	57,124	47,243
EPS (INR)	15.9	15.4	3	16.0	(0)	42.2	61.3	66.4	68.5	56.6
P/E (x)						30.1	20.8	19.2	18.6	22.5
EV/EBITDA (x)						15.8	12.9	11.9	11.0	12.6
RoCE (%)						26	26	24	21	16

Source: Company, HSIE Research, PAT adjusted for one-offs, ^ Adjusted for INR 1.017 bn one-off

## REDUCE

CMP (as on	INK 1,273	
Target Price	INR 1,330	
NIFTY		24,213
KEY	OLD	NIETA
CHANGES	OLD	NEW
Rating	REDUCE	REDUCE
Price Target	INR 1286	INR 1330
EPS %	FY25E	FY26E
EPS %	0.8	3.1

#### KEY STOCK DATA

Bloomberg code	DRRD IN
No. of Shares (mn)	834
MCap (INR bn) / (\$ mn)	1,061/12,620
6m avg traded value (IN	NR mn) 2,867
52 Week high / low	INR 1,421/1,057

#### STOCK PERFORMANCE (%)

	3M	6M	12M
Absolute (%)	(6.6)	0.2	20.9
Relative (%)	(7.5)	(7.4)	(2.6)

### **SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (%)**

	Jun-24	Sep-24
Promoters	26.65	26.64
FIs & Local MFs	20.73	21.48
FPIs	42.27	41.75
Public & Others	10.35	10.13
Pledged Shares	-	-
Source: BSE		

Mehul Sheth mehul.sheth@hdfcsec.com +91-22-6171-7349



# **Berger Paints**

# Demand remains subdued; margins disappoint

BRGR's revenue remained flat at INR27.7bn (in-line). Volume/value growth for Q2 stood at 3.6%/-0.4%. Decorative business saw single-digit volume growth, impacted by weather conditions and flooding in key markets. The premium segment performed well, while mass-consumption products experienced flat/negative growth. A new team has been established to drive market share growth in urban markets, with management targeting an increase from 10% to 15% over the next three years. GM improved by 58bps to 41.7%. EBITDA margin contracted 147bps to 15.6% (HSIE: 16.7%) due to higher employee costs. We cut our EPS estimates by 1-2% for FY25/26 and retain our REDUCE rating with a DCF-based TP of INR500/sh (implying 41x Sep-26E P/E).

- Q2FY25 highlights: Consolidated revenue remained flat at INR 27.7bn (inline). Standalone revenue was also stable at INR 24.3bn (in-line). GM improved by 58bps to 41.7%. EBITDA margin contracted 147bps to 15.6% (HSIE: 16.7%) due to higher employee costs associated with urban initiatives. A new team has been established to drive market share growth in urban markets, with management targeting an increase from 10% to 15% over the next three years. The profitability of the company's overseas subsidiary, Bolix, was impacted by one-off costs related to its project business. The decorative business saw single-digit volume growth, impacted by weather conditions. The premium segment performed well, while mass-consumption products experienced flat/negative growth. In the industrial business, growth in GI, automotive, and powder coatings was flat, influenced by subdued demand in the CV segment. Protective coatings delivered strong results, with doubledigit volume and mid-single-digit value growth. Net cash position moderated to INR 2.42bn on account of dividend payment in Q2. APAT declined by 7.6% YoY to INR 2.7bn (HSIE: INR 3.1bn).
- Outlook: BRGR has taken steps to increase its market share in response to rising competitive pressure, but its success in doing so will be a key monitorable. We cut our EPS estimates by 1-2% for FY25/26 and retain our REDUCE rating with a DCF-based TP of INR500/sh (41x Sep-26E P/E).

**Ouarterly financial summary** 

Quarterly III			2/ 2/							
(Rs mn)	Q2 FY25	Q2 FY24	YoY (%)	Q2 FY25	QoQ (%)	FY23	FY24	FY25E	FY26E	FY27E
Net Revenue	27,746	27,673	0.3	30,910	(10.2)	1,05,678	1,11,989	1,17,903	1,32,924	1,50,197
EBITDA	4,342	4,737	(8.3)	5,224	(16.9)	14,872	18,613	19,243	22,026	25,264
APAT	2,699	2,921	(7.6)	3,540	(23.8)	8,604	11,699	12,277	14,375	16,654
EPS (Rs)	2.3	2.5	(7.6)	3.0	(23.8)	8.9	10.0	10.5	12.3	14.3
P/E (x)						57.9	51.1	48.7	41.6	35.9
EV/EBITDA (x)						33.9	32.0	30.5	26.4	22.7
Core RoCE(%)						17.6	19.9	20.3	23.1	25.0

Change in estimates

	FY25E			FY26E			FY27E		
(Rs mn)	New	Old	Change (%)	New	Old	Change (%)	New	Old	Change (%)
Revenue	1,17,903	1,19,950	(1.7)	1,32,924	1,35,229	(1.7)	1,50,197	1,52,804	(1.7)
Gross Profit	47,816	48,646	(1.7)	53,974	54,910	(1.7)	61,063	62,122	(1.7)
Gross Profit Margin (%)	40.6	40.6	$0\ bps$	40.6	40.6	0bps	40.7	40.7	$0\ bps$
EBITDA	19,243	19,577	(1.7)	22,026	22,408	(1.7)	25,264	25,703	(1.7)
EBITDA margin (%)	16.3	16.3	$0\ bps$	16.6	16.6	0bps	16.8	16.8	$0 \ bps$
APAT	12,277	12,504	(1.8)	14,375	14,612	(1.6)	16,654	16,926	(1.6)
APAT margin (%)	10.4	10.4	-1 bps	10.8	10.8	1 bps	11.1	11.1	1 bps
EPS (Rs)	10.5	10.7	(1.8)	12.3	12.5	(1.6)	14.3	14.5	(1.6)

Source: Company, HSIE Research

## REDUCE

CMP (as on 0	INR 513	
<b>Target Price</b>	INR 500	
NIFTY		24,213
KEY CHANGES	OLD	NEW
Rating	REDUCE	REDUCE
Price Target	INR 500	INR 500
EPS %	FY26E	FY26E
EF3 %	-1.8	-1.6

#### **KEY STOCK DATA**

Bloomberg code		BRGR IN
No. of Shares (mn)		1,166
MCap (INR bn) / (\$ mn)		599/7,110
6m avg traded value (INR m	nn)	1,022
52 Week high / low	IN	R 630/439

#### STOCK PERFORMANCE (%)

	3M	6 <b>M</b>	12M
Absolute (%)	(5.7)	(1.9)	(7.2)
Relative (%)	(6.6)	(9.5)	(30.7)

## SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (%)

	Jun-24	Sep-24
Promoters	74.99	74.99
FIs & Local MFs	7.58	8.77
FPIs	7.51	6.98
Public & Others	9.92	9.24
Pledged Shares	0	0
Source : BSE		

Pledged shares as % of total shares

Jay Gandhi jay.gandhi @hdfcsec.com +91-22-6171-7320

# HDFC securities Click. Invest. Grow. YEARS INSTITUTIONAL RESEARCH

# **KEC International**

# Mixed performance

KECI reported a mixed set of numbers in Q2FY25, with the highest-ever order inflow during the quarter and a relatively weak to muted EBITDA margin profile. Its revenue/EBITDA/APAT beat/(miss) stood at 1.5/-3.8/-17.2%. The standalone (~88% revenue) EBITDA margin also remained weak at 5.1%. KECI maintained reverting to 9-10% EBITDA margins by Q4FY25 on the back of legacy projects getting completed. KEC continues to surprise with the Order Inflow (OI) of INR 134.8bn, largely led by T&D, civil and railways segments at 69/9/10%, respectively. The order book (OB) as of Sep'24 stood at INR 341bn (~1.7x FY24 revenue), while L1 stood at INR 84.1bn. Further, KEC plans to transfer its cables business to a subsidiary (KEC Asian Cables Limited) by January 2025 as management remains optimistic about long-term growth (revenue of INR 28-29bn by FY27). KEC expects to realise INR 7-8bn of receivables in FY25, aiding its existing liquidity. KECI expects 15% FY25 revenue growth. Given the slip in the margin, we have tweaked our estimates lower. Given INR 8.7bn fundraising, robust inflows, expected margin expansion and likely higher valuation for the cable business, we increase our P/E valuation from 18x to 20x. Owing to the limited upside on our revised target price of INR 1,017/sh, we maintain an ADD rating on KECI.

- Q2FY25 financial snapshot: Revenue: INR 51.1bn (+13.7/13.3%, YoY/QoQ, beat of 1.5%). The EBITDA came in at INR 3.2bn (+16.7/+13.9%, YoY/QoQ, a miss of 3.8%), while the EBITDA margin stood at 6.3% (+16.6/+20.3bps, YoY/QoQ, vs. our estimate of 6.6%). APAT came in at INR 854mn (+53/-2.5% YoY/QoQ, a miss of 17.2%). Management envisages challenges such as manpower shortages, adverse weather, and delayed collections in water projects affecting margins.
- Record high order book: KECI's OI stood at INR 135bn in FYTD25, a surge of 50% on a YoY basis, led by T&D, civil and railways. The tender pipeline is currently at INR 1.5trn, with KEC targeting OI of INR 250bn for FY25. The OB as of Sep'24 stood at INR 341bn (~1.7x FY24 revenue), including L1 of INR 84.1bn the order book stood at INR 425bn.
- Effective debtor management crucial for achieving lower NWC targets: The consolidated net debt, including interest-bearing acceptances, has reduced by INR 3.3bn to INR 52.7bn (from INR 55.97bn as of Jun 2024). The interest cost for Q2FY25 was at 3.3% (vs. 3.9%/3.4% YoY/QoQ) of revenue. The NWC days as of Sep 2024 stood at 130 (+8 days QoQ) and are expected to be <~100 by FY25-end

## Consolidated financial summary (INR mn)

Particulars	2QFY25	2QFY24	YoY (%)	1QFY25	QoQ (%)	FY24	FY25E	FY26E	FY27E
Net Revenues	51,133	44,990	13.7	45,119	13.3	199,142	227,479	258,683	291,155
EBITDA	3,202	2,743	16.7	2,704	18.4	12,146	16,568	23,206	26,991
APAT	854	558	53.0	876	(2.5)	3,468	6,506	11,623	14,169
EPS (INR)	3.3	2.2	53.0	3.4	(2.5)	13.5	24.4	43.7	53.2
P/E (x)						61.5	39.2	22.0	18.0
EV/EBIDTA (x)						21.9	18.7	13.2	11.3
RoE (%)						8.8	14.9	22.4	22.2
Source: Company	y, HSIE Re	search							

#### Change in Estimates (INR mn)

Particulars	FY25E				FY26E		FY27E		
rarticulars	New	Old	Chg. (%)	New	Old	Chg. (%)	New	Old	Chg. (%)
Revenues	227,479	227,479	-	258,683	258,683	-	291,155	291,155	0.0
EBITDA	16,568	17,307	(4.3)	23,206	23,681	(2.0)	26,991	26,461	2.0
EBITDA (%)	7.3	7.6	(32.5)	9.0	9.2	(18.4)	9.3	9.1	18.2
APAT	6,506	7,406	(12.1)	11,623	12,047	(3.5)	14,169	13,827	2.5
Source: Company, HSIE Research									

# **ADD**

CMP (as on 5	24)	II	NR 949	
<b>Target Price</b>		IN	R 1,017	
NIFTY				24,213
KEY CHANGES		OLD		NEW
Rating		ADD		ADD
Price Target	IN	R 906	IN	JR 1,017
EPS Change	FY25E	FY26	6Ε	FY27E
%	(12.1)	(3.	5)	2.5

#### KEY STOCK DATA

Bloomberg code	KECI IN
No. of Shares (mn)	266
MCap (INR bn) / (\$ mn)	253/3,004
6m avg traded value (INR mn)	1,029
52 Week high / low INF	R 1,068/550

#### STOCK PERFORMANCE (%)

	3M	6 <b>M</b>	12M
Absolute (%)	14.7	26.2	57.9
Relative (%)	13.8	18.6	34.4

## **SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (%)**

	Jun-24	Sep-24
Promoters	51.88	50.1
FIs & Local MFs	25.29	26.33
FPIs	12.66	13.60
Public & Others	10.16	9.97
Pledged Shares	-	-
Source: BSF		

Source. DSE

Pledge share as a % of total shares

### Parikshit D Kandpal, CFA

parikshitd.kandpal@hdfcsec.com +91-22-6171-7317

## Aditya Sahu

aditya.sahu@hdfcsec.com +91-22-6171-7338

#### Jay Shah

jay.shah1@hdfcsec.com +91-22-6171-7353

# HDFC securities Click. Invest. Grow. YEARS INSTITUTIONAL RESEARCH

# V-MART Retail

# Healthy recovery underway

V-Mart KPIs mean reverting from the bottom continues to play out, led by – (1) paring down of Limeroad losses, (2) profitability improvement led by the closure of non-performing stores, and (3) recovery in footfalls/sales density. Revenue grew 20.3% YoY to INR6.61bn (-in-line). Core V-MART operations rose 27% YoY to INR5.37bn (in-line). Q2 SSSG stood at 15% (vs. -6% in Q2FY24). ASP, overall, was up by 6% (mainly due to a change in product mix). GM/EBITDAM came in at 33.6/5.8% (HSIE: 33.7/4.8%). Inventory days reduced to 111 (vs. 132 in Q2FY24). We've increased FY26/27 EBITDA estimates (3-4%) to account for a better recovery. Our DCF-based TP stands revised at INR3,400/sh (earlier INR3100/sh), implying 26x Sep-26 EV/EBITDA. However, the recovery story seems to have played out at 33x Sep-26 EV/EBITDA. Hence, we downgrade the stock to SELL.

- **Q2FY25** highlights: V-MART posted 20.3% YoY growth to INR6.61bn. Core V-MART operations grew 27% YoY to INR5.4bn (in-line). Footfall/store increased by 18.3% and currently stands at INR16.4k/store. Annualized sales density for core VMART stood at INR6.8k/sq ft (up 19.4% YoY). Transaction size has remained stable YoY at INR 1,001. SSSG for Q2 stood at 15% (vs. -6% in Q2FY24). SSSG for core VMART and Unlimited stood at 14/9%, respectively. GM contracted by 101bps YoY to 33.6% in Q1 (HSIE: 33.7%). EBITDAM increased to 5.8% (0.1% YoY; HSIE: 4.8%), led by (1) favourable operating leverage, (2) reduction in advertising expense and (3) lower Limeroad losses (down 63% YoY and 27% QoQ to INR73mn). Inventory days have improved to 111 days (vs. 132 in Q2FY24). The company aims to add 55 stores (gross) in FY25. It added 14 VMART/5 Unlimited stores (net) in Q2. The majority of unprofitable store closures are now complete. Adj. EBITDA/APAT stood at -INR185/565mn (HSIE: -INR245/445mn).
- Outlook: Stabilising core operations + ebbing Limeroad losses could ensure a healthy FY25. However, the KPI mean reversion story now seems to have played out at current valuations (33x Sep-26 EV/EBITDA). We've increased FY26/27 EBITDA estimates (3-4%) to account for a better recovery. Our DCF-based TP stands revised at INR3,400/sh (earlier INR3100/sh), implying 26x Sep-26 EV/EBITDA. Downgrade to SELL.

Quarterly financial summary

(Rs mn)	Q2 FY25	Q2 FY24	YoY (%)	Q1 FY25	QoQ (%)	FY22	FY23	FY24	FY25E	FY26E	FY27E
Net Revenue	6,610	5,494	20.3	7,861	(15.9)	16,662	24,648	27,856	32,847	37,669	43,541
EBITDA	(185)	(498)	(62.9)	438	(142.2)	792	909	95	1,448	2,255	2,909
APAT	(565)	(622)	(9.2)	121	(565.5)	116	(78)	(968)	135	600	1,035
EPS (Rs)	(28.6)	(31.5)	(9.2)	6.1	(565.3)	5.9	(4.0)	(48.9)	6.8	30.4	52.3
P/E (x)						716.1	(1,062.0)	(86.5)	620.4	139.3	80.8
EV/EBITDA (x)						103.2	93.0	891.8	58.4	37.4	28.9
Core RoCE(%)						5.1	2.1	(5.3)	4.3	10.3	14.2

Source: Company, HSIE Research, Standalone Financials

Change in estimates

	FY25E				FY26E		FY27E			
(Rs mn)	New	Old	Change (%)	New	Old	Change (%)	New	Old	Change (%)	
Revenue	32,847	32,301	1.7	37,669	37,044	1.7	43,541	42,820	1.7	
Gross Profit	11,080	10,895	1.7	12,800	12,588	1.7	14,883	14,636	1.7	
Gross Profit Margin (%)	33.7	33.7	0 bps	34.0	34.0	0 bps	34.2	34.2	0 bps	
EBITDA	1,448	1,383	4.7	2,255	2,177	3.6	2,909	2,816	3.3	
EBITDA margin (%)	4.4	4.3	13 bps	6.0	5.9	11 bps	6.7	6.6	11 bps	

Source: Company, HSIE Research, Pre IND AS 116 financials

## SELL

Target PriceINR 3,400NIFTY24,213KEY CHANGESOLDNEWRatingADDSELLPrice TargetINR 3,100INR 3,400EBITDA %FY25EFY26E4.73.6	CMP (as on	INR 4,177	
KEY CHANGES Rating ADD SELL Price Target INR 3,100 INR 3,400 FY25E FY26E EBITDA %	<b>Target Price</b>	INR 3,400	
CHANGES Rating ADD SELL Price Target INR 3,100 INR 3,400 FY25E FY26E EBITDA %	NIFTY		24,213
CHANGES Rating ADD SELL Price Target INR 3,100 INR 3,400 FY25E FY26E EBITDA %	VEV		
Price Target INR 3,100 INR 3,400 FY25E FY26E EBITDA %		OLD	NEW
FY25E FY26E EBITDA %	Rating	ADD	SELL
EBITDA %	Price Target	INR 3,100	INR 3,400
2211211 /0	EDITO A 0/	FY25E	FY26E
	EDITUA %	4.7	3.6

#### **KEY STOCK DATA**

Bloomberg code	VMART IN
No. of Shares (mn)	20
MCap (INR bn) / (\$ mn)	83/983
6m avg traded value (IN	R mn) 147
52 Week high / low	INR 4,520/1,606
•	

#### STOCK PERFORMANCE (%)

	3M	6 <b>M</b>	12M
Absolute (%)	27.5	90.9	144.4
Relative (%)	26.6	83.3	120.9

## SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (%)

	Jun-24	Sep-24
Promoters	44.3	44.3
FIs & Local MFs	32.6	32.8
FPIs	15.5	16.0
Public & Others	7.6	6.9
Pledged Shares	0	0
Source : BSE		

Pledged shares as % of total shares

Jay Gandhi jay.gandhi @hdfcsec.com

+91-22-6171-7320



# Sai Silk (Kalamandir)

# Encouraging recovery; set for a strong comeback

Sai Silk's (SSKL) revenue grew by 6.3% YoY to INR3.47bn (H1 SSSG stood at -6.5%; however, it has been on an up move. SSSG is expected to be strong in H2, backed by higher wedding dates). Blended revenue per sq. ft. stood at ~INR 20k. Demand recovery is seen in Q2. SSKL added 2 VML format stores in Q2 (area addition: 16k sq. ft). Expansion guidance remains unchanged at ~75k sq. ft in FY25. GM improved 56bps YoY to 42.2% (in-line) courtesy a better product mix. EBITDAM contracted 88bps YoY to 15.9% (HSIE: 16%), primarily due to front-loading of new store expenses. We maintain our estimates for FY25/26 and our BUY rating with a DCF-based TP of INR280/sh (implying 20x Sep-26E P/E).

- Q2FY25 highlights: Revenue grew by 6.3% YoY to INR3.47bn, primarily driven by a base effect and a recovery in Q2FY25. Revenue for H1FY25 was overall affected by fewer wedding days and a poor monsoon season. The market is expected to recover in H2FY25 due to a higher number of wedding dates. Additionally, Pitru Paksha, which is viewed as an inauspicious period, occurred in Q2 this year (vs Q3 last year). This should aid H2FY25 demand. Revenue per sq. ft. stood at INR 20.2k. H1 SSSG stood at -6.5%. SSKL added two stores of VML in Q2 —an area addition of ~16k sq. ft. The company targets to add 6-8 VML stores in H2. GM improved 56bps YoY to 42.2% (HSIE: 42%) courtesy better product mix. In the KLM segment, the company is focused on improving margins and expanding its product portfolio. It has also entered the innerwear market through format. EBITDAM contracted 88bps YoY to 15.9% (HSIE: 16%). The company has shifted from traditional marketing to digital marketing to improve margins, with a focus on creating higher-quality content. EBITDA grew by 0.7% to INR 554mn (HSIE: INR 555mn). APAT improved by 1.8% YoY to INR 238mn (HSIE: INR 269mn).
- Outlook: SSKL's growth is expected to primarily unfold in H2FY25 and beyond, driven by store expansions and peak wedding season. We maintain our estimates for FY25/26 and our BUY rating with a DCF-based TP of INR280/sh (implying 20x Sep-26E P/E).

**Ouarterly financial summary** 

(Rs mn)	Q2	Q2	YoY	Q1	QoQ	FY22	FY23	EV24	FY25E	EV26E	EV27E
(KS IIII)	FY25	FY24	(%)	FY25	(%)	1122	1123	1125 1124	1123E	1 1 20L	F12/E
Net Revenue	3,473	3,268	6.3	2,673	29.9	11,361	13,515	13,736	14,933	18,685	21,939
Adj EBITDA	554	550	0.7	189	192.7	1,263	1,858	1,793	2,011	2,900	3,539
APAT	238	234	1.8	21	1,037.3	544	976	1,009	1,228	1,934	2,433
EPS (Rs)	1.6	1.5	5.9	0.1	1,037.3	3.5	6.4	6.6	8.0	12.6	15.9
P/E (x)						49.3	27.5	26.6	21.8	13.9	11.0
EV/EBITDA (x)						23.1	16.0	14.2	12.1	8.1	6.3
Core RoCE(%)						15.4	22.1	17.5	16.7	23.3	25.6

Change in estimates

		FY25E			FY26E			FY27E	
(Rs mn)	New	Old	Change (%)	New	Old	Change (%)	New	Old	Change (%)
Revenue	14,933	14,933	1	18,685	18,685	1	21,939	21,939	-
Gross Profit	6,195	6,195	-	7,883	7,883	-	9,307	9,307	-
Gross Profit Margin (%)	41.5	41.5	-	42.2	42.2	-	42.4	42.4	-
EBITDA	2,011	2,011	-	2,900	2,900	-	3,539	3,539	-
EBITDA margin (%)	13.5	13.5	-	15.5	15.5	-	16.1	16.1	-
APAT	1,228	1,228	-	1,934	1,934	-	2,433	2,433	-
APAT margin (%)	8.2	8.2	-	10.3	10.3	-	11.1	11.1	-
EPS (Rs)	8.0	8.0	-	12.6	12.6	-	15.9	15.9	-
Cost of Retailing (%)	28.0	28.0	-	26.7	26.7	-	26.3	26.3	-

Source: Company, HSIE Research

# BUY

CMP (as on 0	INR 175	
Target Price	INR 280	
NIFTY		24,213
KEY CHANGES	OLD	NEW
Rating	BUY	BUY
Price Target	INR 280	INR 280
EPS %	FY26E -	FY26E -

#### KEY STOCK DATA

Bloomberg code	SSKL IN
No. of Shares (mn)	153
MCap (INR bn) / (\$ mn)	27/320
6m avg traded value (INR r	nn) 78
52 Week high / low	INR 312/144

#### STOCK PERFORMANCE (%)

	3 <b>M</b>	6 <b>M</b>	12M
Absolute (%)	9.7	(8.8)	(27.3)
Relative (%)	8.8	(16.4)	(50.8)

#### **SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (%)**

	Jun-24	Sep-24
Promoters	60.80	60.80
FIs & Local MFs	19.12	16.16
FPIs	2.86	3.29
Public & Others	17.22	19.75
Pledged Shares	0	0

Source: BSE

Pledged shares as % of total shares

Jay Gandhi

jay.gandhi @hdfcsec.com +91-22-6171-7320



**Rating Criteria** 

BUY: >+15% return potential
ADD: +5% to +15% return potential
REDUCE: -10% to +5% return potential
SELL: > 10% Downside return potential

### Disclosure:

Analyst	Company Covered	Qualification	Any holding in the stock
Jay Gandhi	Titan, Berger Paints, V-MART Retail, Sai Silk (Kalamandir)	MBA	NO
Parikshit Kandpal	ABB India, KEC International	CFA	NO
Aditya Sahu	ABB India, KEC International	MBA	NO
Jay Shah	ABB India, KEC International	CA	NO
Mehul Sheth	Mankind Pharma, Dr Reddy's Laboratories	MBA	NO





#### **Disclosure:**

Authors and the names subscribed to this report, hereby certify that all of the views expressed in this research report accurately reflect our views about the subject issuer(s) or securities. SEBI conducted the inspection and based on their observations have issued advise/warning. The said observations have been complied with. We also certify that no part of our compensation was, is, or will be directly or indirectly related to the specific recommendation(s) or view(s) in this report.

Research Analyst or his/her relative or HDFC Securities Ltd. does not have any financial interest in the subject company. Also Research Analyst or his relative or HDFC Securities Ltd. or its Associate may have beneficial ownership of 1% or more in the subject company at the end of the month immediately preceding the date of publication of the Research Report. Further Research Analyst or his relative or HDFC Securities Ltd. or its associate does have/does not have any material conflict of interest.

HDFC Securities Limited (HSL) is a SEBI Registered Research Analyst having registration no. INH000002475.

#### Disclaimer:

This report has been prepared by HDFC Securities Ltd and is solely for information of the recipient only. The report must not be used as a singular basis of any investment decision. The views herein are of a general nature and do not consider the risk appetite or the particular circumstances of an individual investor; readers are requested to take professional advice before investing. Nothing in this document should be construed as investment advice. Each recipient of this document should make such investigations as they deem necessary to arrive at an independent evaluation of an investment in securities of the companies referred to in this document (including merits and risks) and should consult their own advisors to determine merits and risks of such investment. The information and opinions contained herein have been compiled or arrived at, based upon information obtained in good faith from sources believed to be reliable. Such information has not been independently verified and no guaranty, representation of warranty, express or implied, is made as to its accuracy, completeness or correctness. All such information and opinions are subject to change without notice. Descriptions of any company or companies or their securities mentioned herein are not intended to be complete. HSL is not obliged to update this report for such changes. HSL has the right to make changes and modifications at any time.

This report is not directed to, or intended for display, downloading, printing, reproducing or for distribution to or use by, any person or entity who is a citizen or resident or located in any locality, state, country or other jurisdiction where such distribution, publication, reproduction, availability or use would be contrary to law or regulation or what would subject HSL or its affiliates to any registration or licensing requirement within such jurisdiction.

If this report is inadvertently sent or has reached any person in such country, especially, United States of America, the same should be ignored and brought to the attention of the sender. This document may not be reproduced, distributed or published in whole or in part, directly or indirectly, for any purposes or in any manner.

Foreign currencies denominated securities, wherever mentioned, are subject to exchange rate fluctuations, which could have an adverse effect on their value or price, or the income derived from them. In addition, investors in securities such as ADRs, the values of which are influenced by foreign currencies effectively assume currency risk. It should not be considered to be taken as an offer to sell or a solicitation to buy any security.

This document is not, and should not, be construed as an offer or solicitation of an offer, to buy or sell any securities or other financial instruments. This report should not be construed as an invitation or solicitation to do business with HSL. HSL may from time to time solicit from, or perform broking, or other services for, any company mentioned in this mail and/or its attachments.

HSL and its affiliated company(ies), their directors and employees may; (a) from time to time, have a long or short position in, and buy or sell the securities of the company(ies) mentioned herein or (b) be engaged in any other transaction involving such securities and earn brokerage or other compensation or act as a market maker in the financial instruments of the company(ies) discussed herein or act as an advisor or lender/borrower to such company(ies) or may have any other potential conflict of interests with respect to any recommendation and other related information and opinions.

HSL, its directors, analysts or employees do not take any responsibility, financial or otherwise, of the losses or the damages sustained due to the investments made or any action taken on basis of this report, including but not restricted to, fluctuation in the prices of shares and bonds, changes in the currency rates, diminution in the NAVs, reduction in the dividend or income, etc.



HSL and other group companies, its directors, associates, employees may have various positions in any of the stocks, securities and financial instruments dealt in the report, or may make sell or purchase or other deals in these securities from time to time or may deal in other securities of the companies / organizations described in this report. As regards the associates of HSL please refer the website.

HSL or its associates might have managed or co-managed public offering of securities for the subject company or might have been mandated by the subject company for any other assignment in the past twelve months.

HSL or its associates might have received any compensation from the companies mentioned in the report during the period preceding twelve months from the date of this report for services in respect of managing or co-managing public offerings, corporate finance, investment banking or merchant banking, brokerage services or other advisory service in a merger or specific transaction in the normal course of business.

HSL or its analysts did not receive any compensation or other benefits from the companies mentioned in the report or third party in connection with preparation of the research report. Accordingly, neither HSL nor Research Analysts have any material conflict of interest at the time of publication of this report. Compensation of our Research Analysts is not based on any specific merchant banking, investment banking or brokerage service transactions. HSL may have issued other reports that are inconsistent with and reach different conclusion from the information presented in this report.

Research entity has not been engaged in market making activity for the subject company. Research analyst has not served as an officer, director or employee of the subject company. We have not received any compensation/benefits from the subject company or third party in connection with the Research Report.

Please note that HDFC Securities has a proprietary trading desk. This desk maintains an arm's length distance with the Research team and all its activities are segregated from Research activities. The proprietary desk operates independently, potentially leading to investment decisions that may deviate from research views.

HDFC securities Limited, I Think Techno Campus, Building - B, "Alpha", Office Floor 8, Near Kanjurmarg Station, Opp. Crompton Greaves, Kanjurmarg (East), Mumbai 400 042 Phone: (022) 3075 3400 Fax: (022) 2496 5066

Compliance Officer: Murli V Karkera Email: complianceofficer@hdfcsec.com Phone: (022) 3045 3600

For grievance redressal contact Customer Care Team Email: customercare@hdfcsec.com Phone: (022) 3901 9400

HDFC Securities Limited, SEBI Reg. No.: NSE, BSE, MSEI, MCX: INZ000186937; AMFI Reg. No. ARN: 13549; PFRDA Reg. No. POP: 11092018; IRDA Corporate Agent License No.: CA0062; SEBI Research Analyst Reg. No.: INH000002475; SEBI Investment Adviser Reg. No.: INA000011538; CIN - U67120MH2000PLC152193

Investment in securities market are subject to market risks. Read all the related documents carefully before investing. Mutual Funds Investments are subject to market risk. Please read the offer and scheme related documents carefully before investing.

Registration granted by SEBI, membership of BASL (in case of IAs) and certification from NISM in no way guarantee performance of the intermediary or provide any assurance of returns to investors.

# HDFC Securities Institutional Equities

Unit No. 1602, 16th Floor, Tower A, Peninsula Business Park,

Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400 013

Board: +91-22-6171-7330 www.hdfcsec.com